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STIPULATION AND CONSENT ORDER

STIPULATION

NOW COME the State of Vermont, by and through State Prosecuting Attorney,
Elizabeth A. St. James, and Applicant PharMEDium Services, LLC, who hereby stipulate
and agree as follows:

Board Authority

. The Vermont Board of Pharmacy (the “Board™) has authority to deny an applicant’s
license if it finds that the applicant has engaged in unprofessional conduct in any
jurisdiction. 3 V.S.A. § 129(a); 3 V.S.A. §129a; 26 V.S.A. § 2051; the
Administrative Rules of the Board of Dental Examiners; and the Rules of the Office
of Professional Regulation.

Stipulated Basis for Denial

Basis for Denial One: 3 V.S.A. § 12%a(a)(3) Failing to comply with provisions of
federal or State statutes or rules governing the practice of the profession,
incorporating BOP 20,1(f) Any disciplinary action in any jurisdiction by a
licensing authority regulating the practice of a health-related profession.

2. An Application for licensure as a 503B Outsourcer was submitted by PharMEDium
Services, LLC of Dayton, New Jersey, Texas (the “Applicant”) and was received by
the Office of Professional Regulation on July 19, 2019 (the “Application™),

3 In the Application, Applicant answered “Yes” to the question “Has Vermont or any
other state, federal authority, or other jurisdiction taken any DISCIPLINARY
ACTION against (e.g. warned, reprimanded, fined, restricted, suspended, revoked) a
license, certificate, or registration that the business entity holds or has held in any
profession or occupation?”

4. On May 22" 2019, Applicant entered into a Consent Decree of Permanent Injunction

with the United States Department of Justice, in the United States District Court for
the Northern District of Illinois Eastern Division (the “Permanent Injunction™). See
Attachment A.
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10.

The Permanent Injunction is a result of allegations of misbranded and/or adulterated
drugs entering interstate commerce.

As part of the Permanent Injunction, Applicant is required to hire an independent
auditor to inspect Applicant, taking into account the Forms FDA 483 issued by the
FDA since 2013. Such audits must commence no less frequently than once every
twelve (12) months for a period of four (4) years. Additional conditions are outlined
in the Permanent Injunction. See Attachment A.

Prior to the issuance of the Permanent Injunction, Boards of Pharmacy in South
Carolina, Indiana, and Alabama issued discipline to Applicant based on the
underlying conduct and concerns which lead to the Permanent Injunction. California
issued a Cease and Desist order. Colorado issued a non-disciplinary Interim
Cessation of Practice Agreement after the issuance of the Permanent Injunction.

Basis for Denial Two: 3 V.S.A. § 129a(b)(1) Failure to practice competently by
reason of any cause on a single occasion or on multiple occasions may constitute
unprofessional conduct, whether actual injury to a client, patient, or customer
has occurred. Failure to practice competently includes: (1) performance of
unsafe or unacceptable patient or client care.

The State re-alleges and incorporates Paragraphs 2 through 7 above.

Review of the underlying facts of the actions mentioned in Paragraphs 2 through 7
show that Applicant performed unsafe or unacceptable patient or client care.

The unprofessional conduct in Paragraphs 2 through 7 above, would constitute
unprofessional conduct in Vermont. Pursuant to 3 V.S.A. §12%(a)(5), the Board may
discipline any licensee or refuse to license any person who has had a license
application denied or license revoked, suspended, limited, conditioned or otherwise
disciplined by a licensing agency in another jurisdiction for conduct which would
constitute unprofessional conduct in this state, or has surrendered a license while
under investigation for unprofessional conduct.

Understandings

Applicant admits the facts above are true and that the conditions below are necessary
to protect the public.

Applicant understands that the Board must review and accept the terms of the
Consent Order. If the Board rejects any portion, the entire Stipulation and Consent
Order shall be null and void.

Applicant specifically waives any claims that any disclosures made to the Board
during its review of this agreement have prejudiced Applicant’s rights to a fair and
impartial hearing in future hearings if this agreement is not accepted by the Board.
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14. Applicant has read and reviewed this entire document and agrees that it contains the
entire agreement between the parties.

15.  Applicant is not under the influence of any drugs or alcohol at the time of signature of
this Stipulation and Consent Order.

16.  Applicant voluntarily enters into this agreement after the opportunity to consult with
legal counsel and is not being coerced by anyone into signing this Stipulation and
Consent Order. :

17.  Applicant voluntarily waives the right to a contested hearing before the Board and
waives any right to appeal from this Stipulation and Consent Order.

18.  Applicant agrees that the Order set forth below may be entered by the Board.
ORDER
Based on the Stipulation above, it is ORDERED AND ADJUDGED as [ollows:

A. The Applicant’s 503B Outsourcer license is hereby CONDITIONED, when issued.
The conditions shall be as follows:

1. Issuance of License. Upon the commencement of these conditions, Applicant
shall be issued a license labeled “conditioned.”

2. Length of Time of Conditions Imposed. The conditions shall remain in place
until Applicant has completed all conditions ordered. Applicant shall be subject
to the conditions for a MINIMUM OF FOUR (4) YEARS.

3. Monitoring. The Office of Professional Regulation, through the Enforcement
Case Manager, shall be responsible for monitoring Applicant’s compliance with
these Conditions. All reports or correspondence regarding compliance with these
conditions shall be submitted to the Case Manager in accordance with the
Conditions listed below.

4. Compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Applicant shall comply with
all laws and regulations governing the operation of a 503B Outsourcer in the State
of Vermont, to include compliance with federal cGMP regulations and FDA
guidance documents as applicable to outsourcing facilities and/or any subsequent
regulation that is designated as applying to outsourcing facilities.

5. EDA Form 483 reporting requirements. Applicant shall provide the Board with
un-redacted copies of any FDA Form 483 observations within ten (10) days of

receipt. Applicant shall further provide any response to such Form 483
observations to the Board within ten (10) days of sending the response to the
FDA. Applicant shall further provide the Board with any Warning Letters
received from the FDA within (10) days of receipt.
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10.

FFederal and/or state action reporting requirements. Applicant shall provide the
Board with copies of any action taken by a federal or state regulatory agency
within ten (10) days of receipt. This reporting requirement applies to any and all
actions taken by federal or state regulatory agencies, whether or not said federal
or state agency considers the action to be disciplinary in nature.

Recalls and/or seizures. Applicant shall report to the Board within five (5) days
of any seizure of any product manufactured, produced, stored, maintained, held,
distributed by, or otherwise in the possession of Applicant. Applicant shall
further report to the Board notice of any recalls of sterile products, both voluntary
and/or mandatory, within five (5) days of such recall. Such notice shall include
whether any such recalled items were shipped into Vermont.

Quality Assurance Reports. Applicant shall submit QUARTERLY reports to the
Board of its product quality assurance program, including but not limited to any
out-of-compliance findings as determined by a relevant state or federal agency,
recalls or adverse drug experiences associated or potentially associated with any
and all of Applicant’s drugs.

Notification of Place of Employment/Personal Address/Telephone Number.
Within ten (10) days of the date of entry of this Consent Order Applicant shall
provide, in writing, notification of Applicant’s current contact information,
including mailing address, telephone number, email address, and designated
contact person for compliance with this Order. Applicant shall provide further
notification, in writing, within forty-eight (48) hours of any change in mailing
address, telephone number, email address, or designated contact person.

Notification to Other States. In the event that Applicant is licensed in any other
state(s), Applicant must inform the licensing board of the state(s) in which
Applicant is licensed of the conditional status of Applicant’s Vermont 503B
QOutsourcer license within thirty (30) days of the date of entry of this Order.

. Interview with the Board or its Designee. Applicant shall appear in person for

interviews with the Board or its designee upon request.

. License Renewal. This Order does not automatically extend the license and

Applicant must comply with the requirements for license renewal.

. Costs. Applicant shall bear all costs of complying with this Consent Order.

. Violation of this Order. If Applicant violates this Order, the Board, after giving

Applicant notice and an opportunity to be heard, may rescind or modify this Order
and impose additional appropriate disciplinary actions. If a complaint of
unprofessional conduct is made against Applicant during the duration of this

- Order, this Order shall be automatically extended until the unprofessional conduct

matter is concluded.
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15. Completion of Conditional License Period. Applicant shall submit a petition to

the Docket Clerk to remove any and all conditions on Applicant’s license. The
State will assent to or oppose Applicant’s petition. The Board will conduct a
hearing if necessary. Applicant bears the burden and must present proof that
Applicant has fully complied with the terms of this Order and the Conditions are
no longer necessary to protect the public.

B. Notwithstanding any provision above, the Applicant must continue to meet all
requirements for maintaining a license, license renewal and license reinstatement.

C. This Stipulation and Consent Order is a matter of public record and may be reported
to other licensing authorities as provided in 3 V.S.A. §129(a).

D. This Stipulation and Consent Order will remain part of Applicant’s licensing file and
may be used for purposes of determining sanctions in any future disciplinary matter.

AGREED TO:

Dated: g;/&?!'ﬁ

Dated: 2 [371[30(4

APPROVED AND SO ORDERED:

Dated: 5/28/ o5

Date of Entry: Y&q {Cl

STATE OF VERMONT
SECRETARY OF STATE

By: é/b—mi,? r A & ‘H Q
Elizabeth A /St. James ‘jwy
State Prosecuting Attorney

Elizabeth.st.james@sec.state.vt.us
(802) 828-1218

PHARMEDIUM SERVICES, LLC
APPLICANT

o ol —

Designated Agent
PharMEDium Services, LLC

By:

/ </
“/Board Chafr

U
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"IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS -

EASTERN DIVISION

- )
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, | )
)
Plaintiff, )

} .

v. ) Civil ActionNo, 19 C 3382

) o

PHARME DIUM SERVICBS LLC )
a limited liability company, <)
_and SCOTT ALADEEN and )
WARREN HORTON, individuals, )
. )
Defendants, )

'CONSENT DECREE OF PERMANENT INJUNCTION
i’laiﬁtiff, the United étate§ of America, by i:ts undersigoed attorneys, having filed a
Complaint for Permanent Injunction against Dcfcnamt;, PhatMedium Services, LLC
(“PharMED{um™), a limited liability company, and Scott Aladeen (who was hired by,
PharMEDmm, and assumed the position of Preszdent on January 28, 2019, after the activities
allcged in the complamt had occurred) and Warren Horton (who was hu'ed by PharMFDmm, and
- agsumed the posilion of Vice President for Quality and Research & Devclopment on April 15,
2019, after the activities alleged in the complaint had oc'curred), individuals (collectively, .
- “Defendants”), and Defendants having appeared and having consented to the entry of this -
Consent Dec;rce of 'Pcnﬁanept_lnjx'mot'ion (“Decree™ withx;ut contest, without admi&hxg or
denying the allegations in the Complaint, and before any testimony has been talen, and the
United Statcs of America having consented to thts Decree;
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADIUDGBD AND DECREED as foﬂows'

l Thls Court has Junsdxcﬂon over the sub_yect matter and all parties to this action under 28

Us.C. §§ 1331 and 1345, 21 U.S. C § 332 and its inherent eguttable authonty

ATTACHMENT f)
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2. The Complaint for Permanent Injunction states a cause of action against Defendants
under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. §§ 301 et seq. (the “Act™).

3. The Complaint alleges that Defendants violate the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 331(a), by
introducing or causing to be introduced, or delivering or causing to be delivered for introduction,
into interstate commerce, articles of drug that are adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C.

§ 351(a)(2)(A) and/or 351(a)(2}(B) and/or misbrancied within the meaning of 21 U.S.C.
§ 352(H(1).

4. The Complaint alleges that Defendants vfolate the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 331(k), by causing
articles of drug to become adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 351(a)(2)(A) and/or
351(a)(2)(B) and/or to become misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 352(f)(1), while
such drugs are held for sale after shipment of one or more of their components in interstate |
commerce.

5. The Complaint alleges that Defendants violate the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 331(d), by
introducing or causing to be introduced, or delivering or causing to be delivered for intfoduction, .
into interstate commerce, new drugs, as defined by 21 U.S.C. § 321(p), tﬁat are neither approvéd
pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 355, nor exempt from approval.

6. For the purposes of this Decree, the following definitions shall apply:

A. “Additional Facilities” refers to Defendants’ Texas and New Jersey Facilities, as
| .deﬁncd in paﬁgaph 6.E. _Defendants have represented to FDA and now represent to this Court
that the Mississippi Facility, as defined in paragraph 6.E., ceased manufacturing drugs on April
17, 2019, and will cease hblding and distributing drugs by May 24, 2019. Sixty (60) days before
Defendants manufacture, hold, and/or distribute drugs at and/or from the Missiésippi Facility or

any facility owned or operated by Defendant PharMEDium, other than the facilities included in
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the definition of Defendants’ Facilities in paragraph 6.E., Defendants shall notify FDA in writing
at the physical and electronic addresses specified in paragraph 28 of their intent to manufacture,
- hold, and/or distribute drugs. If Defendants manufacture, hold, and/or distribute drugs at and/or
from the Mississippi Facility, the Mississippi Facility shall thereafter be included in the
deﬁnition of Additional Facilities and be fully subject to the provisions of the Decree. If FDA
inspects any facility owned and/or operated by Défendant PharMEDium and finds a violation of
the Act and/or its implementing regulations, FDA may order that such facility or facilities shall
thereafter be fully subject to the provisions of this Decree as though the facility or facilities were
included in Defendants’ Facilities in paragraph 6.E, and included as an Additional Facility in this
paragraph when the Decree was entered; |

B. “CGMP” shall refer to the current good manufacturing practice requirements for
drugs within the nieaning of 21 US.C. § 351(a)(2)(B) and 21 C.F.R. Parts 210 and 211, as
described in related guidance, if any, and/or any subsequent regulation that is designated as
applying to outsourcing facilities; .

C. “Compound” and “compounding” sha]l include the combining, admixing, mixing,
diluting, pooling, recons‘ﬁtuting, or otherwise altering of a drug or bulk drug substance to create a.
drug as defined in 21 U.S.C. § 353b(d)(1);

D. “Days” shall refer to calendar days unless othe.rwisc stated;

~ E. “Defendants’ Facilities” shall refer to the fécilities located at: (1) Two Conway

Park, 150 North Field Drive, Suite 350, Lake Forest, 1llinois 60045 (“PharMEDium Corporate
Headquarters”); (2) 6100 Global Drive, Memphis, Tennessee 38141 (“Tennessee Facility™); 3

913 North Davis Avenue, Cleveland, Mississippi 38732 (“Mississippi Facility”); (4) 12620 West
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Airport Boulevard, Suite 130, Sugar Land, Texas 77478 (“Texas Facility™); and (5) 36 Stults
Road, Dayton, New Jersey 08810 (“New Jersey Facility™);

F. “Distribution” and “distribﬁting” shall mean to sell, trade, ship, or deliver and
shall include, but not be limited to, delivery or shipment to a healthcare setting for administration
and dispensing to a patient or to an agent of a patient;

G. *“Drug” shall have the meaning given the ferm in 2‘1 U.S.C. §321(g)(1);

H. “Drug product” shall mean a finished dosage form (for example, tablet, capsule,
or solution) that contains a drug substance, generally, But not necessaily, in-association with one
or more other ingredients;

I “FDA” shall mean the Unit'ed States Food and Drug Administration;

1. The terms “manufacture,” “manufactured,” and “manufaciuring” shall include
manufacturing, compounding, processing, packing, repacking, holding, and labeling drugs;

K. “New drug” shall have the meaning as set out in 21 U.S.C. § 321(p);

L. “Serious adverse drug g:xperience” shall have the meaning given the term in
21 C.F.R. § 310.305(b); and

M. “Sterile drug” shall have the meaning as set out in 21 U.S.C. § 353b(d)(5).

| ‘ Tennessee Facility
7. Upon entry-of this Decree, Defendants and each and all of their directors, officers, agents,

employees, representatives, successors, assigns, attorneys, and any and all persons in active
| 'c.oncert or participation with any of them who have received actual notice of this Decree by
personal service or otherwise, are permanently restrained and enjoined, under 21 U.S.C. § 332(a)

and the inherent equitable authority of this Court, from directly or indirectly manufacturing,
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holdihg, and/or distributing any drugs manufactured at and/or from the Tennessee Facility,
unless and until: |

A. Defendants ensure that the facilities, methods, and controls used to manufacture,
hold, and/or distribute drugs at or from the Tennessee Facility are established, operated, and
administered in conformity with this Decree, the Act‘,‘ and its implementing regulations, and are
adequate to prevent Defendants’ drugs from becoming: adtll’;el'ated \évithin the meaning 61‘ 21
U.S.C. § 351(a)(2)(A) and/or 351(a}(2)(B); new drugs that are neither approved under 21 U.S.C.
§ 355 nor exempt from approval; and/or misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C,

§ 352(6(1):

B. Defendants ensure that each drug that Defendants intend to manufacture, hold,
and/or distribute at'or from the Tennessee Facility (except for FDA-approved drug products
manufactured by third parties that Defendants receive andkhold prior to manipulation) satisfies
all of the provisions of 21 U.S.C. § 353b, including but not limited to:

(1) Drug labeling at 21 U.S.C. § 353b(2)(10);

(2) Facility regis&ation at 21 U.S.C. § 353b(b)(1);

(3) Drug reporting at 21 US.C. § 353b(b)(2); and

{4) Adverse event reporting at 21 U.S.C. § 353b{b)(5);

C. Defendants retaiq, at Defendants’ expense, an independent person or persons (the
“CGMP Expert”) who: (1) is without any personal or financial ties (other than a retention
agreement to satisfy the requirements of this Decree or a reteution. agreement to provide CGMP
consultant and/or expert services prior to entry of this Decree) to Defendants or their Mes;
and (2) by reason of background, training, education, 01; experience, is qualified to (i) conduct

inspections to determine whether the facilities, methods, and controls at the Tennessee Facility
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and PharMEDium Corporate Headquarters are established, opefated’, and administered in
conformity with CGMP and adequate to prevent Defendants from manufacturing, holding,
and/or distﬁbuting drug products that are adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C.
§ 351(a)(2)(A) and/or 351(a)(2)(B), new drugs that are neither approved under 21 U.S.C. §355
nor exempt from approval, and/or misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 352(f)(1), and
(ii) recommend and direct the implementation of corrective actions;
D. Defendants shall notify FDA in writing of the identity and qualifications of the
CGMP Expert within twenty (20) days after retaining the expert;
E. .Defendants submit a protocol that identifies the work plan for the CGMP Expert
- and the methodology that shall be used by the CGMP Expert (the “Work Plan™) to: (1) conduct
inspections of the Tennessee Facility and PharMEDium Corporate Headquarters as described in
péragraph 7.F.; (2) ensure that Defendants implement all recommended corrective actions; and
(3) ensure that Defendants’ procedures fof manufacturing, holding, and/or distributing drugs are
adequate to pfcvent Defendants’ drugs from becoming adulterated within the meaning of 21
U.S.C. § 351(a)(2)(A) and/or 351(a)(2)(B), new drugs that afe neither approved under 21 U.S.C,
§ 355 nor exempt from approval, and/or misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C.
§ 352(f)(1). Defendants shall not imﬁlement the Work Plan prior to receiving FDA’s written .
approval, and in no circumstances shall FDA’s silence be construed as a substitute for written
approvél. FDA will review and provide a written response regarding the Work Plan as soon as
practicablc. If FDA disapproves the Work Plan, FDA shall state the reason(s) for such
disapproval in writing; |
F. The CGMP Expert reviews all observations listed on the Forms FDA 483 issued

by FDA since 2013 for the Tennessee Facility and PharMEDium Corporate Headquarters and
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perf‘orms comprehensive inspections of the facilities, methods, and controls at the Tennessee
Facility and PharMEDium Corporate Headquarters to determine whether the facilities, methods,
and con&ols are, at a minimum, operated in conformity with CGMP and are adequate to prevent
Defendants’ drugs from becoming adulterated within the.meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 351(a)(2)(A)
and/or 351(a)(2)(B), new drugs that are neither approved under 21 U.S.C. § 355 nor exempt from
approval, and/or misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 352(f)(1). The CGMP Expert
shall evaluate, at the Tennessee Facility and to the extent applicable at PharMEDium Corporate

- Headquarters, at a minimum, whether:

1) Defendants have cleaned, sanitized, and satisfactorily maintained
the facility, including the equipment and utensils, as necessary to effectively address the risks
associated with aseptic processing, at appropriate intervals to ensure the safety, identity, strength,
quality, and purity of Defendants’ drugs; ’

)} Defendants have established and impiemented an adeqt;ate written
cleaning and disinféction program that they have shown through valid scientific evidence is
effective for cleaning and disinfecting equipment and facilities used to manufacture drugs;

3) Defendants have established and implemented an adequate
environmental mdnitoring program to: (a) ensure that all sterile and/or aseptic operations are
properly monitored (including gwfaces and air quality); (b) include scientifically sound pre-
established limits; and (c) ensure. that Defendants identify, review, and address any results that

exceed the pre-established limits and any adverse trends;

4) Defendants have established and implemented adequate written

procedures designed to prevent microbiological contamination of drug products purporting to be




Case: 1:19-cv-03382 Document #: 6 Filed: 05/22/19 Page 8 of 28 PagelD #:56
Case: 1:19-cv-03382 Document #: 3 Filed: 05/20/19 Page 8 cﬁ‘ 28 PageiD #:%6

sterile including, but not limited to, procedures for dynamic smoke studies, media fill

simulations, environmental monitoring, and validation of all aseptic an& sterilization processes;
(5) Defendants have established adequate control systems necessary to

prevent contamination during aseptic processing including, but not limited to, an air supply

filtered through high-efficiency particulate air (HEPA) filters under positive pressure;

6) Defendants have established and implemented, adequate written
standard operating procedures ("SOPs”).for manufacturing, holding, and distributing sterile
drugs; |

N Defendants have established and implemented written procédures
to ensure that Defendants’ drug products have the strength, purity, and quality they purport to or

are represented to possess;

(8) Defendants conform to written procedures for production and
process control designed to ensure that Defendants’ drug products have the identity, strength, -
quality, and purity they purport or are represented to possess, and that any deviation from the

written procedures are recorded and justified;

©)] Defendants have established and implemenfed a written program
designed to ensure that any automatic, mechanical, or electronic equipment used in the
mmxlfacﬁring or holding of a drug product is routinely calibrated, qualified for intended use,
inspected, or checked to eﬁsure proper perfomiance, and that written records of those calibration

checks and inspections are maintained;

(10) Defendants have established and implemented an adequate testing

program designed to assess sterility, the presence of endotoxin, and the stability characteristics

and strength of their drug products;
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any Defendants have estgblished and hnplémented written procedures
to ensure that they: (a) thoroughly investigate any unexplained discrepancy or the failure of a
batch of drug product, whether or not the batch has already been distributed, or any of its
components, to meet any. of the product’s or component’s specifications, including the extension
of such investigation to other batches of the same product and other products that may have been
associated with the specific failure or discrepancy; (b) take required and timely corrective actioné
for all products that fail to meet specifications; and (c) document in a timely manner
investigations and any corrective actions and retain such documentation, as appropriate;

(12) Defendants have established and implemented container closure
systems that are clean, and, where indicated by the nature of the drug, sterilized and processed to
remove pyrogenic properties (depyrogenation) using a validated method to ensure they are

suitable for their intended use;

. (13) Defendanté ensure that the equipment used in the manufacture
and/or holding of their drugs is appropriately designed to facilitate cleaning, sanitization, and
maintenance and Defendants have shown through valid scientific evidence that such equipment

is adequate for its intended use;

(14) Defendants’ employee training and qualification practices are
adequate including, but not limited to, employee training and qualification in CGMP, inspection
techniques, aseptic techniques, media fill érocesses, and procedures for responding to product
quality deviations;

(15) Defendants ensure that their finished drug products are properly

labeled and meet all the requirements of 21 U.S.C. § 353b(a)(10); and
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(16) Defendants ensure that their quality control unit has adequate
responsibiiity and authority to approve or reject all cofnponents, drug product containers,
closures, in-proceés materials, packaging material, and dmg préduct labeling; review and fully
investigate any errors that may occur; and initiate and complete thorough investigations;

G. The CGMP Expert certifies in writing to FbA and Defendants that:
) The CGMP Expert has inspected the facilities, methods, and

controls at the Tennessee Facility and PharMEDium Corporate Headquarters as described in

paragraph 7.F;
) All deviations brought to Defendants’ attention by FDA, the

CGMP Expert, and any other source have been corrected; and

3) The facilities, meméds, and controls at the Tennessee Facility and
'PharMEDium Corporate Headquarters comply with this Decree, the Act, and its implet;xenting
regulations, including that the facilities, methods, and controls are adequate to prevent
Defendants’ drugs from becoming adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 35 l(a)(Z)(A)
and/or 351(a)(2)(B), new drugs that are neither approved under 21 U.S.C. § 355 nor exempt from
approval, and/or misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 352(f)(1).

As part of this certiﬁ.cation,'Defendams shall ensure that the CGMP Expert includes a
detailed and complete report of the results of the inspections conducted under paragraph 7.F.;
H. Defendants report to FDA in writing the actions they have taken to:
(¢)] Cdrrect all insanitary conditions and deviations from CGMP

brought to Defendants’ attention by FDA, the CGMP Expert, or any other source; and

10
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) Ensure that the facilities, methods, and controls at the Tennessee

Facility and PharMEDium Corporate Headquarters are established, operated, and administered in
conformity with this Decree, the Act, ‘a.nd its implementing regulations;

I. Defendants establish and n_:éintain a system to report to FDA, through the
MedWatch reporting system, adverse drug experiences (in the manner described in 21 C.F.R.
§ 310.305) associated or potentially associated with any and all of Defendants’ drugs as soon as
possible, but no later than fifteen (15) days after Defendan.ts’ initial ieceipt of reportableiadverse
event information;

J. Defendants establish and maintain a system to submit to FDA, at the physical and
electronic addresses specified in paragraph 28, product quality reports (in the manner and as V
described’ in paragraph 20);

| K. FDA representétives, without prior notice and when FDA deems necesséry,

inspect the Tennessee Facility and PharMEDium Corporate Headquarters, which shall include, R
but not be limited to, observing the preparation for and production of test or validation batches of
drug products intended to be sterile (which fnay not be distributed unless FDA subsequently
autho?izes distribution in writing) and, without prior notice, take any other action to determine
whether the facilities, methods, and conttols at the Tennessee Facility and PharMEDium v
Corporate Headquarters comply with thJ"s Decree, the Act, and its implementing regulations,
including whether the facilities, methods, and controls are adequate to prevent their drugs from
becoming adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 351(a)(2)(A) and/or 351(a)(2)(B), new
drugs that are neither approved under 21 U.S.C. § 355 nor e*empt from approval, and/or

misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 352(f)(1); and
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L. FDA notifies Defendants in writing that Defendants appear to be in compliance
with all of the requireme;xts set forth in paragraphs 7.A.~7.J. of this Decree. FDA will notify
Defendants as soon as practiéable. Inno circumsta;lce shall FDA’s silence be construed as a
substitute for Written notification.

8. After Defendants' have complied with paragraph 7, and received written notification from
FDA under paragraph 7.L., Defendants shall retain an independent person who meets the criteria
described in paragraph 7.C. and who is qualified to assess Defendants’ compliance with
paragraph 7 (the “Auditor™) to conduct audit inspections of the Tennessee Facility and
PharMEDium Corporate Headquarters. Defendants shall notify FDA in writing as to the identity
and qualifications of the Auditor within twenty (20) days of retaining such Auditor. After
Defendants receive written notification from FDA under paragraph 7.L., audit inspections for the
Tennessee Facility and PharMEDium Corporate Headquarters shall commence no less frequently
than once every six (6) months for a period of one (1) year, and then annually for the next four
(4) years. The Auditor may be the same person(s) as the CGMP Expert described in paragfaph
7.

A. At the conclusion of each audit inspection described in this paragraph and
paragraph 10, the Auditor shall prépare a written audit report (“Audit Report™) analyzing
whethexl Defendants comply with the requireinents of this Decree, the Act, and its implementing
regulations. The Audit Report shall identify all deviations from this Decree, the Act, and its
implementing rcgulations (“audit report observations”). Beginning with the second Audit
Report, the Auditor shall also assess the adequacy of any corrective actions taken by Defendants
to correct all previous audit report observations, if any, and any Form FDA 483 observations and

include this information in the Audit Report. The Audit Report and any supporting
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dogumentatioh shall be delivered contemporaneously to Defendants and FDA no later than thirty
(30) days after the date each audit inspection is completed. In acidition, Defendants éhall .
maintain all Audit Reports in a separate file at the associated facility and shall promptly make the
Audit Repérts available to FDA upon request.

B. If an Audit Report contains any audit report observations, Defendants shall,
withiﬁ thirty (30) days after receipt of the Audit Report, correct those deviations, unless FDA
nétiﬁes Defendants in writing that a shorter time period is necessary. If, after receiving the Audit
Report, Defendants believe that correction of the deviations will take longer than thirty (30) days,
Defendants shall, within fifteen (15) business days after receipt of the Audit Report, propose a
schedule for completing corrections. Defendants shall complete all corrections according to the
approved correction schedule unless FDA notifies Defendants in writing that a shorter time period
is necessary. Within thirty (30) days after Defendants’ receipt of an Audit Report, unless FDA
notifies Defendants that a shorter time period is necessary, or within the time period provided in a
- correction schedule, the Auditor shall initiate review of the actions taken by Defendants to correct
the audit report ébéervations. Within fificen (15) days after beginning that review, Defendants
shall ensure that the Auditor reports in writing with supporting documentation to FDA Whethet
each of the audit report observations has been filly corrected and, if not, which audit report
observations remain uncorrected.

9. Within thirty (30) days from the entry of this Decree, Defendants shall, under FDA’s
supervision, destroy any remaining in-process and finished drug products intended fof
distribution that were manufactured or held at the Tennessee Facility and are in Defendants’
possession, custody, or control. Defendants shall bear the costs of destruction and the costs of

FDA’s supervision at the rates specified in paragraph 19. Defendants shall be responsible for

13
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ensuring that the destruction is carried out in a manner that complies with all applicable federal
and state mﬁronmenﬁl laws, and any other applicable federal or state laws.
Additional Facilities
10. Within thirty (30) days from the date of entry of this Decree, Defendants shall retain, at

Defenf;lants’ expense, an'independent person or persons (the “Additional Facilities Auditor”)?
which may be the same person or persons ‘retéined under paragraphs 7 or 8.

A, The Additional Facilities Auditor: (1) must not have any personal or financial ties
(other than a retention agreement to satisfy the requirements of this Decree or a fetention
agreement to provide CGMP consultant and/or expert service prior to entry of this Decree) to
Defendants or their faﬁzilies; and (2) by reason of background, training, education, or experience,
must be qualified tb @ conduct audit inspections to determine whether the facilities; methods,
and controls at the Additional Facilities are established, operated, and administered in cont\’ormity
with CGMP and adequate to ;;revent Defendants from manufacturing, holding, and/or ‘
distributing drug products that are adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 351(2)(2)(A)
and/or 351(a)(2)(B), new drugs that are neither approved under 21 U.S.C. § 355 nor exempt from )
approval, aﬂd/or misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 352(f)(1), and (ii) recommend
and direct the implementation of corrective actions.

B. Defendants éhall nofify FDA in writing of the identity and qualifications of the
Additional Facilities Auditor as soon as they retain such auditor.

C. Within sixty (60) days from the date of entry of this Decree, the Additional.
Facilities Auditor shall revicw all observations listed on the Forms FDA 483 issued by FDA
since 2013 for the Additional Facilities and commence audit inspections of the facilities,

.methods, and controls at the Additional Facilities to determine whether the facilities, methods, -
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and controls are, at a minimum, operated in conformity with CGMP and are adequate to prevent
Defendants’ drug products from becoming adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C.

8 35.1(a)(2)(A) and/or 351(a)(2)(B), new drugs that are neither approved undér 21 US.C.§355
nor exempt from approval, and/or misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S‘.C. § 352(f)(1). The -
Additional Facilities Auditor shall evaluate, at a minimum, the jtems listed in paragraphs 7.F.1.~
7.F.16.

D. After Defendants commence the audit inspections required under paragraph 10.C.,
- audit inspections of the Additional F acilities shall commence no less frequently than once every
twelve (12) m§nths for a period of four (4) years,
E. V'I'he requirements in paragraphs 8.A. and 8.B. shall apply to the audit inspections
conducted by the Additional Facilities Auditor pursuant to this paragraph,

-11. FDA representatives, without ;}rior notice and when FDA deems necessary, may inspect
the Additional Facilities, which shall include, but not be limited to, observing the preparation for
and production of drug products intended to be sterile, and, without prior notice, take any other
action to determine whether the facilities, methods, and contréls used to manufacture, hold,
and/or distribute drugs comply with this Decree, the-Act, and its implementing regulations,
including whether the facilities, methods, and controls are adeqﬁate to prevent their drugs from
becoming adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 35 l(af(Z)(A) and/or 351(a)(2)(B), new
drugs that are neither iipproved under 21 U.S.C. § 355 nor exempt from approval, and/or
misbranded within the._' meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 352(6(1);

12. If FDA determines that any of the Additional Facilities is not operating in compliance E
with this Decree, the Act, or its implementing regulations, FDA will notify Defendants of the

noncompliance and, as it deems necessary, order Defendants to take appropriate corrective action

. 15
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. inclu(.iing, but not limited to, action pursuant to paragraph 16. and/or assessing liquidated
damages pursuant to paragraph 25,

13. Within three (3) days from entry of this Decree, Defendants’ Additional Facilities shall
establish and maintain a system to report to FDA through the MedWatch reporting system -
adverse drug experiences (in the manner described in 21 C.F.R. § 310.305) associated or
ﬁotentially associated with any and all of Defendants’ drugs as soon as possible, but no later than
fifteen (15) days after Defendants® initial receipt of reportable adverse event information,

14. Within three (3) days from entry of this Decree, Defendants’ Additional Facilities shall
establish and maintain a system to submit to FDA, at the physical and electronic addresses -
specified in paragraph 28, product quality reports (in the manner and as described in paragraph
20).

General Provisions

15. Upon entry of this Deeree, Defendants and each and all of their directors, officers,
agents, employees, representatives, successors, assigns, attorneys, and any and all persons in
active concert or participation with any of them, who have received actual notice of this Decree
by personal service or otherwise, are permanently restrained and enjoined under 21 U.S.C.

§ 332(a) from directly or indirectly doing or causing to be done ény act that:

A. Violates 2.1 U.S.C. § 331(a) by introduciné or causing to be introduced, or
delivering or causing to be delivered for introduction, isito interstate commerce, aﬁy drug that is
adulterated within the m;:aning of 21 U.S.C. § 351(a)(2)(A) and/or 351(a)(2)(B) and/or
misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 352(H(1);

B. Violates 21 U.S.C. § 331(k) by causing any drug to become adulterated wi.thin the

meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 351(a)(2)(A) and/or 351(a)(2)(B) and/or misbranded within the meaning
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of 21 U.S.C. § 352(f)(1), while such drug is held for sale after shipment of one or more of its
components in interstate commerce; .

C. Violates 21 US.C. § 331(d) by introducing or causing to be introduced, or
delivering or causing to be delivered for introduction into interstate commerce, any new drug
that is neither approved under 21 U.S.C. § 355, nor exempt from approval; and/or

D. Any act that results in the failure to implement and continuousiy maintain the
requirements of this Decre;s.

16. If, at any time after entry of this Decree, FDA determines, based on the results of an
inspectioh, analyses of samples, a report or data prepéred or submitted by Defen&ants, the -
_CGMP Expert, the Auditor, and/or the Additional Facilities Auditor, or any other information,
that Defendants have failed to comply with the provisions of this Decree, violated the Act, its
implemenﬁng regulations, and/or that additional corrective actions are necessary to acﬁieve
‘compliance with this Decree, the Act and/or its implementing regulations, FDA may, as and
When it deems necessary, notify Defendants in writing of the noncompliance and order
Defendants to take appropriate corrective a;:fion, including, but not limited to, ordering
Defendants to immediately take one or moré of the followihg actions:

A, Cease all manufacturing, holding, and/or distributjon of any and all drug(s);

B. Recall specified drugs manﬁfactufed, held, and/or distributed by Defendants.

- Defendants shall initiate the recall(s) within twenty-four (24) hours after receiving notice from
FDA that a recall i§ necessary. Defendants shall bear the costs of such recali(s), including the
costs of FDA’s supervision at the rates specified in paragraph 19; |

C. Destroy, under FDA supervision, specified finished and/or in-process drugs and

* components that are in Defendants’ possession, custody, or control, Defendants shall bear the
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costs of destruction and the costs of FDA’s supervision at the rates specified in paragraph 19.
Defendants shall be responsible for ensuring that the destruction is carried out in a-manner that
complies with all applicable federal and state environmental laws, and any other appficable
fedéral or state law;
D. Submit additiohal rep‘orts or information to FDA;
-E. Repeat, revise, modify, or expand any report(s) or plan(s) prepared pursuant fo
this Decree; ' |
F. Issue a safety alert With respect to a drug manufactured, held, and/or distributed
by Defendants; and/or
G. Take any other corrective action(s) as FDA, in its discretion, deems necessary to
protect the public heéalth or bring Defendants into compliance with this Decree, the Act and/or its
imp!ementing regulations. |
This remedy shall be separate and apart from, and in addition to, any other remedy
available to the United States under this Decree or under the law.
17. The following process and pro§edures shall apply in the event that FDA issues an order
_under paragraph 16. |
A. Unless a different time frame is specified by FDA in its order, within ten (10)
business days after receiving such order, Defendants shall notify FDA in writing cither that: (1)
Defendants are undertaking or have undertaken corrective action, in which cvgnf Defendants
shall also describe the specific action taken or proposed to be taken and the proposed schedule
for completing the action; or (2) Defendants do not agree with FDA’s order. If Defendants

" notify FDA that they do not agree with FDA'’s orcier, Defendants shall explain in writing the

18
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basis for their disagreement; in so doing, Defendants may also propose specific alterﬂative
actions and timeframes f‘or achigving FDA’s. objectives.

B. If Defendants notify FDA that they do not agree with FDA’s order, FDA will
review Defendants’ notification, and ﬂlereaﬁer, in writing, affirm, modify, ér withdraw its order,
as FDA deems appropriate. If FDA affirms or modifies its order, it will explain the basis for its
decision in writing. The written notice of afﬁnnation or modification shall constitute final
agency action.

C. IfFDA affirms or modifies its order, Defendants shall, upon receipt of FDA’s
order, immediately implement the order (as modified, if applicable), and may, if they so choose,
bring the matter béfore this Court on an expedited basis. While seeking Court review,

 Defendants shall continue to diligentlgr implement and comply with FDA’s order, unless and
until the Court stays, reverses, or modifies FDA’s order. Any judicial review of FDA’s order
under this paragraph shall be made pursuant to paragraph 26. | |

D. The process and'procedures set forth in paragraphs 17.A.-17.C. shall not apply to
any order issued pursuant to paragraph 16 if such order states that, in FDA’s judgment, the
matter raises a significant public health concern. In such case, Defendants shall, upon receipt of
such order, immediately and fully comply with the terms of that order. Should Defendants seek
to challenge any such order, t.hey may petition this Court for relief while they implement FDA's
order. Any judicial review of FDA’s order under this paragraph shall bc made pursuant to
paragraph 26.

Any cessation of operations or othe:; action described in paragraph 16 shall continue until
Defendants receive written notification from FDA that Defendants appear to be in compliance

with this Decree, the Act, and its implementing regulations, and that Defendants may resume
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operations. Upon Defendants’ written request to resume operations, FDA will determine
whether Defendants appear fo be in compliance, and, if so, issue to Defendants a written
notification permitting, as appropriate, resumption of operations. In no circumstance shall
FDA'’s silence be construed as a substitute for written notification. The costs of FDA
inspections, sampling, testing, travel time, and subsistence expenses to implement the remedies
set forth in this paragraph and paragraph 16 shall be borne by Defendants at the rates specified in
paragraph 19. This provision shall be separate and apart from, and in addition to, all other ‘
remedies available to FDA.,

18. Representatives of FDA shall be permitfed, without prior notice and as and when FDA
deems necessary, to m.ake ingpections of Defendants’ Facilities, collect samples, and, without
prior notice, take any other measures necessary i_ncluding but nat limited to, observing routine
production, to monitor and ensure continuing compliance with the terms of this Decree. During
such inspections, FDA representatives shall be permitted access. to Defendants’ Facilities
including, but not limited to, all buildings, equipment, in-process or Mished and finished
materials and products, coﬁtainers;_ laBeling, and other promoﬁonal matertal therein; to take
photographs and make video recordings; to take sami)les;, without charge to FDA, of finished and
unfinished materials and products, containers and packaging material the;ein, labeling, and other

.promotional material; and to examine and copy all records relating to the receiﬁt, manufacturing,
holding, and/or distribution of any and all dfugs and their components. The inspections-shall be
permitted upon presentation of a copy of this Decree and appropriate credentials. The inspection
authority granted by this Decree is separate from, and in addition to, the authority to conduct

inspections under the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 374.
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| 19. Defendants shall pay all costs of FDA’s supervision, inspectidns, investigations, analyses,
exanaiﬁations, and reviews that FDA deems necessary to évaluate Defendants’ compliance with
this Decree, including the tra\}el incurred by specialized investigatory and expert personnel, at
the standard rates prevailing at the time the costs are incurred. As of the date that this Decree is
signed by the parties, these rates are: $97.57 per hour and fraction thereof per representative for
inspection work; $132.89 per hour or fraction thereof per representative for analytical or review
work; $0.58 per inile for travel by automobile; government rate or the equivalent for travel by‘ air
or other means; and the published government per diem rate or the equivalent for the areas in
which the inspections are performed per representative and per day for subsistence expenses,
where necessary. In the event that the standard rates applicable to FDA supervision of court-
ordered compliance are modified, these rates shall be increased or decreased without further
order of the Court. '

20. Within three (3) business days aftex becoming aware of any of the followipg information
pertaining to Defendants’ distributed drug products, Defendants shall submit to FDA at the
physical and electronic addresses specified in paragraph 28, a product quality report pertaining to
any: ’

A. Product and/or manufacturing defects that could result in serious adverse drug.

experiences;

B. Incidents that cause a drug product or its labeliﬁg to be mistaken for, or applied

to, another article;

. C. Bacteriological or fungal contamination, or any significant chemical, physical, or
other change or deterioration in a distributed drug product, or any failure of one or more

distributed batches of a drug product to meet its release specifications.
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2]. Within ten (10) business days after entry of this Decree, Defendants shall post a copy of
this Decree on a blﬂleﬁn board in the employee common areas at Defendants’ Facilities, and
pubiish the Decree on any intéma_l and/or publicly-available website maintained and/or
controlled by Defendants. Defendants shall ensure that the becree remains posted as:described
herein for not less than twenty-four (24) months,

22, Within fifteen (15) business days after entry of thisvDecree, Defendants shall provide a
copy of this Decree, by persfmal service, personal delivery via electronic mad with
acknowledgment of receipt (return receipt email), or certified mail (restricted deli{lery, return
receipt requested), to each and all of their directors, officers, agents, employees, representatives,
successors, assigns, attorneys, and any and all persons in active concert or participation with any
of them (collectively referred to as “Associated Persons”). ‘Within thirty (30) days after entry of
this Decree, Defendants shall provide to FDA an affidavit of compliance, signed by a person
with personal knowledge of the facts, stating the fact and manner of compliance with the
provisions of this paragraph and identifying the names, addrésses, and positions of all persons
who have received a copy of this Decree pursuant to this paragraph, and attaching a copy of the
return receipts. Thereafter, within ten (10) business days after receiving a request from FDA for
any information or decumentation that FDA deems necessary to evaluate Defendants’
compliance with this paragraph, Defendants shall provide such information or documentation to
‘'FDA.

23. In the event that Defendants become associated with any additional Associated Person(s)
| at any time after entry 6f this Decree, Defendants immediately shall provide a copy of this
Decree,_ by personal service or certified mail (restricted delivery, return receipt requested), to

such Associated Person(s). Every six (6) months, Defendants shall provide to FDA an affidavit
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stating the fact and manner of their compliance with this paragraph, identifying the némes,
addresses, and positions of all Associated Persons who received a copy of this Decree pursuant
to this paragraph, and attaching a copy of the executed certified mail return receipts. Within ten
(10) business days after receiving a request from FDA for any information or documentation that
FDA. deems necessar'y to evaluate Defendants’ compliance with this paragraph, Defendants shall
proVide such information or documentation to FDA... '

24. Defendants shall notify FDA at least fifteen (15) business days before any change in
ownership, character, or name of any of Defendants’ businesses, including incorporation,
reorganiéation, relocation, bankruptcy, dissolution, assighment, or sale resulting in the
emergence of a successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries, or any other
chanée in the corporate étructure, réspoﬁsibility of any individual defendant, or identity of
PharMEDium, or in the sale orassignment of any business assets, such as buildings, equipme;xt,
or inventory, that may affect obligations arising out of this Decree. Defendants shall prm'/ide a
copy of this Decree tor any potential successor or assign at legst fifteen (15) business days before
‘any sale or assignment. Defendants shall furnish FDA with an affidavit of compliance with this
paragraph no later than ten (10) business days prior to any such assignment, change of
responsibility of any individual defendant, or change in ownership.

25. If any Defendant fails to comply with any provision of this Decree, the Act, and/or its
implementing regulations, including any time frame imposed by this Decrec, then Defendants
shall pay to the United States of America: fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000) in liquidated
damages for each day sﬁch violation continues; an additional sum of ﬁﬁeen thousand dollars
($15,000) in liquidated damages for each violation; and further additional sum equal to the retail

-value of drug products that have been manufactured and/or distributed in violation of this
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Decree, the Act, and/or its implementing regulations. 'The amount of liquidated damages
imposed under this paragraph shall not exceed twenty million dollars ($20,000,000) in any one
calendar year. The remedy in this para;graph shall be in addition to any other remedies available
to the United States under this Decree or the law.

26. Defendants shall abide by the decisions of FDA, and FDA's decisions shall be final. All
decisions é(.)nferred upon FDA in this Decree shall be vested in FDA’s discretion and, to the
extent that these decisions are subject to review, shall be reviewed by this Counf. under the
arbitrary and capﬁcious standard set forth in 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A). Review by the Court of any
FDA decision rendered pursuaat to this Decree shall be based exclusively on the writfen record
before FDA at the time-of the decision. No discovery shall be taken by either party.

27. Should the United States of America bring, and prévail in, a contempt action to enforce
the terms of this Decree, Defendants shall, in addition to other remedies, pay all attorneys® fees
and costs, travel expenses incurred by attorneys and witnesses, expert witness fees,
investigational and analytical expenses, court costs, and any other costs or fees incurred by the
United States in bringing such an action.

28. All notifications, cértiﬁcations, reports, correspondence, and othef communications tc;
FDA required by the tetﬁ:s of this Decree shall be prominently marked “Consent Decree
Correspondence,” and shall be addressed to the Director, FDA, ORA/OPQO - Pharm 3 Division
of Pharmaceutical Quality Operations, 550 W. Jackson Blvd. #1500, Chicago, IL 60661 and 4
clectronically to ORAPHARM3_RESPONSES@fda.hhs.gov, '
ORAPHARM2_RESPONSES@fda.hhs.gov, and ORAPHARMI_RESPONSES@fda..hhs.gov.

29. If any individual Defendant will no longer be empléyed by Defendant PharMEDium or

. otherwise act for Defendant PharMEDium (“Separating Individual Defendant”), then not more
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than ten (10) days after the Separating Individual Defendant separates from Defendant
PharMEDium, Defendant PharMEDjum shall notify FDA in writing at the physical and
electronic addresses specified in paragraph 28. The notification to FDA shall include (1) the
identity of the Separating Individual Defendant and (2) the identity and nature of employment of
an individual of similar position and responsibilities that Defendant PharMEDium will substitute
as an individual Defendant (“Substitute Individual Defendant™). Once a Separating Individual
Defendant ceases to be émployed by Defendant PharMEDium or otherwise act for Defendant
PharMEDium, Defendant PharMEDjum shall petition the Court to formally remove the
Separating Individual Defendant’s name from the c‘aption of this Decree and.at’id the Substitute
Individual Defendant. The United States will not oppose such a motion, so long as FDA has (1)
sufficient evidence or information that the Separating Individual Defendant is no longer directly
or indirectly working for or with, orin any way influencing, Defendant PharMEDium and (2)
sufficient information about the Substitute Individual Defendant and the position and level of
responsibilities he or she holds. Any Substitute Individual Defendants added to this Decree shall
be bound by the Decree in the same manner as the individual Defendants originally named in the
Decree. A Separating Individual Defendant removed from the caption of this Dccrée shall not be
subject to the terms of this Decree. Notwithstanding this paragraph, a Separating Individual
Defendant shall continue to be liable for such individual ‘Defendant’.s acts and failures to act
under this Decree prior to the time such individual ceased to’be employed by or act on behalf of
Defendant PharMEDium, ’ '

30. If any deadline in this Decree falls on a weekend or federal holiday, the deadline is

continued to the next business day.
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31. No sooner than sixty (60) months after entry' of this Decree, Defendants may petition this

Court for full relief from this Decree or for specific relief from this Decree with regard to one or

- more of Defendants’ Facilities. If, at the time of the petition, Defendants have satisfied all of
their obligations under this Decree with respect to the specific facilities for which Defendants are
seeking relief and, in FDA’s judgment, Defendants have maintained a state of continuous
compliance with tiiis Decree, the Act, and its implementing reguiations for at least sixty (60)
months, the United States will not oppose the petition, and Defendants may request the Com to
grant such relief,

32. Defendants may at any time petition FDA in writing to extend any deadline provided for
herein, and FDA may grant such extension without seeking leave of Court. However, any such
petitions shall not become effective or stay the imposition of any payments under this Decree
unless granted by FDA in writing.

33. This Court retains jurisdiction of this éction and the parties thereto for the purpose of
enforcing and ‘modifying this Decree and for the purpose of granting such additional relief as

may be necessary or appropriate.
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The undersigned hereby consent to the entry of the foregoing Decree.

For Defendants:

ffl

SCOTT ALADEEN

Individually and on behalf of PHARMEDIUM

SERVICES, LLC

47—"6/""

WARREN HORTON
Individually

JOMN H. FUSON

Attorney for Defendants SCOTT ALADEEN

and WARREN HORTON
Crowell & Moring LLP

1601 Pennsylvania Avenue NW
Washington, D.C. 20004
202-624-2910
JFuson@crowell.com

Attorneys for Defendant PHARMEDIUM
SERVICES, LLC

Hogan Lovells US LLP

Columbia Square

555 Thirteenth Street, NW

Washington, D.C. 20004

202-637-5896

202-637-5403
James.Johnson@hogantovells.com
David.Horowitz@hoganlovells.com

For the United States of America:

JOHN R, LAUSCH, JR.
United States Altorney

JOSEPFH H, HUNT
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Division

GUSTAV W, EYLER
Director
Coasumer Protection Braach

ANDREW CLARK

Assistant Director

e.ocl—————
SHANNON PEDERSEN
CLAUDE SCOTT
Trial Attorneys
Consumer Protection Branch
Department of Justice, Civil Division
P.O. Box 386
Washington, D.C. 20044
202-532-4490
Shannen.L.Pedersen@usdoj.gov

OF COUNSEL:

ROBERTP. CHARROW
General Counsel

STACY CLINE AMIN

Chief Counsel :

Food and Drug Administration

Deputy General Counsel

Department of Health and Human Services

ANNAMARIE KEMPIC
Deputy Chief Cpunsel for Litigation

LAURA J. AKOWUAH

_ Associate Chief Counsel

Office of the Chief Counsel

agelD #:75
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Food and Drug Administration
10903 New Hampshire Avenue -
Silver Spring, MD 20993-0002
301-796-7912 -
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